Notice of The Charter Trustees for Bournemouth
Date:

Thursday, 24 June 2021 at 6.00 pm

Venue:

Solent Hall, Bournemouth
Bournemouth

International

Centre,

Exeter

Road,

Membership:
Mayor:
Cllr D Kelsey
Deputy Mayor:
Cllr S Phillips
Cllr D Borthwick
Cllr H Allen
Cllr L Allison
Cllr M Anderson
Cllr S C Anderson
Cllr M Andrews
Cllr S Bartlett
Cllr J Beesley
Cllr P Broadhead
Cllr D Brown
Cllr S Bull
Cllr R Burton
Cllr E Coope
Cllr M Davies

Cllr N Decent
Cllr B Dove
Cllr B Dunlop
Cllr J Edwards
Cllr G Farquhar
Cllr D Farr
Cllr L Fear
Cllr A Filer
Cllr M Greene
Cllr N Greene
Cllr M Haines
Cllr N Hedges
Cllr M Iyengar
Cllr C Johnson

Cllr T Johnson
Cllr A Jones
Cllr J Kelly
Cllr R Lawton
Cllr L Lewis
Cllr R Maidment
Cllr D Mellor
Cllr L Northover
Cllr K Rampton
Cllr C Rigby
Cllr R Rocca
Cllr T Trent
Cllr L Williams
Cllr K Wilson

All Members of The Charter Trustees for Bournemouth are summoned to attend this
meeting to consider the items of business set out on the agenda below.
The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following
link:
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5140
If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please
contact: Democratic Services by email at democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk
Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: by email at
press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

GRAHAM FARRANT
HONORARY CLERK TO THE CHARTER TRUSTEES
16 June 2021

Town Hall, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY

Available online and
on the Mod.gov app

This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk

anne.brown@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

AGENDA
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public
1.

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence from Charter Trustees.

2.

Declarations of Interests
Charter Trustees are requested to declare any interests on items included
in this agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for
guidance.
Declarations received will be reported at the meeting.

3.

Confirmation of minutes and matters arising

5 - 14

To receive the minutes of the meetings held on 25 January and 28 May
2021 and to consider any matters arising.
4.

Charter Mayor's Report
The Charter Mayor will report on his recent activities.

5.

Charter Trustees 2020-21 Internal Audit Report

15 - 22

To consider and approve the outcome of the internal audit report and the
management responses to the recommendations.
6.

Budget Outturn Report 2020/21

23 - 28

Due to effects of the pandemic, the Charter Trustees of Bournemouth
underspent against their approved budgets by £27,671 for 2020/21. This
underspend plus the budgeted contribution to reserves of £4,400 has been
added to the opening reserves position of £7,994 to give total reserves
carried forward of £40,065 as at 31 March 2021.
7.

Annual Governance Statement 2020/21
The Charter Trustees are asked to consider and approve the Annual
Governance Statement 2020/21.
Please note that the paper attached for this item also relates to item 8
below.

8.

Statement of Accounts for 2020/21
The Charter Trustees are asked to approve the statement of accounts for
2020/21.

9.

Responsible Financial Officer
That in accordance with the Standing Orders the Responsible Financial
Officer from 1 July 2021 following the resignation of Daniel Povey will be
Nicola Webb in a temporary capacity.

29 - 36

10.

Flag Flying Arrangements for the Charter Trustees for Bournemouth
The Charter Trustees are asked to consider its flag flying arrangements.
It is a matter for the Charter Trustees to adopt its own flag. The Coat of
Arms for the former Bournemouth Borough Council is in the ownership of
the Charter Trustees. There is an opportunity for the Charter Trustees to
adopt the Coat of Arms as their flag.
Set out below are the proposed events that will be respected by the Charter
Trustees:
Occasion
Mayor Making
Formal Meeting of the Charter
Trustees
Civic Service

Flag
adopted flag of the Charter
Trustees
adopted flag of the Charter
Trustees
adopted flag of the Charter
Trustees

The following notes should be considered
1.
Flags will also be flown on other occasions on the instructions of the
Honorary Clerk who will consult with the Mayor (or in the Mayor’s
absence with the Deputy Mayor) in appropriate circumstances.
2.

The death of a serving civic dignitary will be observed by flying the
appropriate flag at half-mast. The death of a former civic dignitary or
former Charter Trustee will be observed by flying the adopted flag of
the Charter Trustees at half-mast.

3.

Remembrance Day events are arranged by both Charter Trustees
whilst the flying of appropriate flags in accordance with national
guidance is reflected in the BCP Council flag flying policy.

Provision of Flagpoles for The Charter Trustees for Bournemouth
The Charter Trustees currently do not have dedicated flagpoles which allow
the flying of their adopted flag for relevant events. It is suggested that
options be explored to allow for such a provision subject to necessary
approvals.

–1–

Agenda Item 3

BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL
THE CHARTER TRUSTEES FOR BOURNEMOUTH
Minutes of the Meeting held on 25 January 2021 at 6.00 pm
Present:Cllr S Phillips – Mayor
Cllr D Borthwick – Deputy Mayor
Present:

51.

Cllr H Allen, Cllr M Anderson, Cllr S C Anderson, Cllr S Bartlett,
Cllr J Beesley, Cllr P Broadhead, Cllr D Brown, Cllr S Bull,
Cllr R Burton, Cllr E Coope, Cllr M Davies, Cllr N Decent,
Cllr B Dunlop, Cllr J Edwards, Cllr G Farquhar, Cllr D Farr,
Cllr L Fear, Cllr A Filer, Cllr M Haines, Cllr M Iyengar, Cllr C Johnson,
Cllr J Kelly, Cllr D Kelsey, Cllr R Lawton, Cllr L Northover,
Cllr K Rampton, Cllr C Rigby, Cllr R Rocca, Cllr L Williams and
Cllr K Wilson
Apologies
Apologies were received from Councillors M Andrews, M Greene, N
Greene, A Jones, T Johnson, L Lewis, R Maidment and T Trent.

52.

Declarations of Interests
The Honorary Clerk reported that there were no declarations of interest at
this stage. It was noted that notice of a potential declaration had been
given but the Councillor had not joined the meeting.

53.

Confirmation of Minutes and Matters arising
The minutes of the meeting held on 26 October 2020 were confirmed as a
correct record.
There were no matters arising from the minutes of the above meeting.

54.

Charter Mayor's Report
The Mayor reported on her activities since the last meeting of the Charter
Trustees on 26 October 2020.
The Mayor reported that she had continued her role as Mayor by supporting
local charities and residents. She explained that most if not all of the
meetings she attended were held via Skype and Zoom, including as the
current President of ChestHelp.
The Charter Trustees were advised that on Sunday 8 November a scaled
back Remembrance Sunday Service was held an hour earlier than usual at
the War Memorial and in attendance was the Mayor accompanied by the
Chief Executive Graham Farrant, the Champion for the Armed Forces
Councillor Dave Kelsey, the British Legion Flag Bearer and the Bugler. The
Mayor explained that this was far from the usual Ceremony of respect by
5

–2–

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES FOR BOURNEMOUTH
25 January 2021
Charter Trustees, the Local Cadets, Armed Forces and dignitaries and she
hoped that we would be able to return to a normal situation soon. The
Charter Trustees were advised that in addition a wreath was laid in the
Lower Gardens in memory of HMS Phoebe Bournemouth’s adopted
warship during World War II. The Mayor report that a wreath was laid at
the Crescent in memory of the Metropole raid that resulted in the greatest
loss of life the town was to suffer at any time in its history over 130 civilians
and allied military personnel were lost. On 11 November Armistice Day
was held again scaled back with the same attendees at 11.00 am.
On 12 November the Mayor joined her Chaplain Rabbi Maurice Michaels
from the Bournemouth Reform Synagogue, with Reverend Dr Ian Terry of
St Peter’s Parish Church – the Civic Church and Imam Majid Yasin of the
Islamic Centre and Mosque for an interfaith Community Meeting, the
purpose was particularly to make sure that Bournemouth residents were
being supported during the Coronavirus Pandemic. It was reported that
each of the Faith Leaders with their congregations were contacting their
congregants and others with friendship and support.
The Mayor reported that she had attended various team meetings with
Democratic Services and the Civic Team. On 24 November she was invited
to attend a Zoom meeting with Brigadier Graeme Jock Fraser MBE ADC
Royal Marines, the Naval Regional Commander of Wales and Western
England.
The Mayor highlighted that last year she had attended the Bournemouth
School for Girls Founders Day. However, this year she had been asked to
provide a video message. The Mayor advised that she was asked to turn on
the Christmas lights in Southbourne and had received an invite from
Reverend Ian Terry to read a lesson on Christmas Eve unfortunately both
had to be declined. The Mayor also highlight the Budget Workshop held in
December 2020.
The Mayor reported on the Holocaust Memorial Day, be a light in the
darkness, which she reported was attended by over 260 and referred to the
speakers who recounted moving stories. She thanked Lynda Ford-Horne
for arranging the event.
The Mayor thanked the National Health Service especially frontline services
in Bournemouth and Poole Hospitals, the staff rolling out the vaccines, all of
the carers and social workers, all shop workers, bin operatives and many
more including the Police Force who have been providing high visibility
patrols to support national health colleagues and members of the public
attending to be given their vaccines, at supermarkets and within the
community.
55.

Budget and Precept 2021/22
The Responsible Financial Officer presented a report on the Budget and
Precept 2021/22, a copy of which had been circulated to each Member and
a copy of which appears as Appendix 'A' to these Minutes in the Minute
Book.

6

–3–

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES FOR BOURNEMOUTH
25 January 2021
The Charter Trustees were advised that the report sets out the
recommended budget for the 2021/22 financial year which would result in a
council tax requirement of £147,956 as set out in the recommendations.
The Responsible Financial Officer reported that the detailed budget was set
out in Appendix A to the report which built on the discussions held and the
guidance received at the budget workshop held on 9 December 2020. The
Charter Trustees were advised of the main features of the budget, that the
individual budget lines have been maintained at their current levels so that
the base budget was inherently fit for purpose going forward when the
Charter Trustees return to normal following the Pandemic .
The
Responsible Financial Officer reported that stationery, postage and
accommodation costs had been reviewed and reduced to reflect the actual
costs that the Charter Trustees were forecast to incur. Charter Trustees
were informed that a modest investment income budget had been added
and a significant review of the salary costs and recharges had been
undertaken. The Responsible Financial Officer reported that the main
changes were for the accountancy recharge which had increased to £3,450
and the salary recharge had increased to £89,200. He referred to the
detailed calculations which were set out at Appendix B to the report
including costs for the Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Head of
Democratic Services which did not feature before to give a fairer recharge
to the Charter Trustees.
The Response Financial Officer reported that Appendix A shows total
expenditure of £156,000 which was funded from the precept of £147,000
and a one-off contribution from reserves of £7,994. The Charter Trustees
were advised of the position regarding reserves and that the £7,994 was
carried forward into 2020/21 which was as a result of underspends last
year. He explained that the outturn was expected to show a significant
underspend on the current year because of Covid-19 and the curtailment of
activities the Charter Trustees have carried out. So, it was anticipated that
just over £36,000 would be added to reserves so by the end of the financial
year there would be £44,663 in reserve. The Responsible Financial Officer
explained this level of reserves would represent 30% of the proposed
precept for this year and he would recommend something closer to 20%
which allowed the contribution of £7,994 to next year’s budget but proposed
that nothing further was contributed to reserves for next year. The
Responsible Financial Officer reported that there would still be 25% of the
precept in reserve and once this current financial year has been closed
would give the opportunity for the Charter Trustees to see if they wanted to
spend that on any one-off items of expenditure.
The Responsible Financial Officer reported on the Tax base and explained
that this had gone down from 63,942 to 61,887 which was due to the
pandemic with the cost of Council Tax Support increasing and amendments
to the collection rate which would affect BCP Council as a whole and the
Bournemouth Charter Trustees. The Charter Trustees were also advised of
the Community Governance Review with a new Parish being set up from 1
April namely Throop and Holdenhurst Village Council which involves
approximately 300 properties. The Charter Trustees cannot charge in that
area because the Parish Council raises its own precept.

7

–4–

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES FOR BOURNEMOUTH
25 January 2021
The Responsible Financial Officer referred to paragraph 26 in the report
which set out the impact of the precept and what it would mean in terms of
a Council Tax increase. He explained that for 2021/22 this would be a
proposed band D Council Tax cost of £2.39 which would result in a 24p
increase or 11.2% compared to the current year. The Responsible Finance
Officer explained that in respect of the draft settlement for local government
Charter Trustees were not subject to referendum limits for Council Tax
increases which would need to be confirmed in the final settlement which
was expected to be released in February but it would be unusual for this to
be changed in the final iteration.
The Charter Trustees in considering the budget and proposed precept
raised a number of issues including:









The role of Bournemouth Charter Trustees in the new Parish Council
area of Throop and Holdenhurst. The Responsible Financial Officer
reported that the Legislation indicates that the Parish Council raises
its own precept as there can only be one local precepting authority in
any one area. It would be a matter for the Charter Trustees as to
whether they carry out activities within that Parish.
Unspent provision not carried forward to another financial year and
how does this comply with the proposed Financial Regulations. The
Responsible Financial Officer explained that paragraph 4.5 of the
Financial Regulations was aimed at the individual budget heads but
any outturn in the current financial year would go into the reserves
pot as it was Charter Trustees money and up to the Charter Trustees
by resolution on how to utilise them.
Clarification of the individual headings being maintained in view of
the impact of the pandemic and why the precept was not frozen. The
Responsible Financial Officer explained that if the base budget was
reduced now when the Charter Trustees return to normality there
would be a council tax increase to return the budget to higher levels
and he was unable to say if the Charter Trustees would be subject to
Council Tax referendum limits at that stage.
Clarification on the parishes in Bournemouth. The Charter Trustees
were advised that from 1 April next year there would be one Parish
Council, Throop and Holdenhurst, that would raise a precept.
Hope that the Mayor of Bournemouth would be doing more work
next year to promote the town and a suggestion that the precept was
reviewed next year.

RESOLVED that:(a)
(b)
(c)

the draft budget for 2021/22 as set out in Appendix A be
approved;
the council tax requirement and precept of £147,956 be
approved;
the Charter Trustees note the conclusion of the external audit of
the 2019/20 Annual Governance and Accountability Return.

Voting: Agreed

8

–5–

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES FOR BOURNEMOUTH
25 January 2021

56.

Financial Regulations
The Responsible Financial Officer presented a report on bespoke Financial
Regulations for the Charter Trustees, a copy of which had been circulated
to each Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'B' to these
Minutes in the Minute Book.
The Charter Trustees were advised that the Financial Regulations which
govern the financial conduct, internal control and financial management of
the Charter Trustees apply equally to the Trustees and the Officers who
were supporting the Charter Trustees. The Responsible Financial Officer
reported that since their establishment on 1 April 2019 the Charter Trustees
had used the BCP Council’s financial regulations and accounting systems.
He explained that the Financial Regulations were based on a template from
the Association of Town Councils and similar to what was used by
Christchurch Town Council and the proposed Financial Regulations had
been amended to make them relevant to the Bournemouth Charter
Trustees. The Responsible Financial Officer outlined some key elements of
the proposed Regulations as set out at Appendix A to the report, including
appointment of officers and responsibilities of Charter Trustees and
Officers, which would be supported by the scheme of delegation set out at
Appendix B to the report. He explained that the scheme of delegation was
derived from the authorities which were set out in the financial regulations
which defines what officers can do and what were reserved matters for the
Charter Trustees and sought to separate duties to ensure sound internal
controls. The Responsible Financial Officer explained that Appendix C set
out the banking arrangements. The Charter Trustees were referred to
paragraph 11 of the report proposing that instead of using the BCP Council
bank account that the Charter Trustees would have its own bank account
and part of the BCP Ledger so that they were separately identified which
would aid transparency and reporting whilst balancing cost efficiencies by
being under the BCP Council Banking umbrella.
RESOLVED that:(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

The Charter Trustees approve the financial regulations as
presented in Appendix A to this report;
The Charter Trustees approve the scheme of delegation
presented in Appendix B to this report;
The Charter Trustees approve the bank mandate as presented
in Appendix C to this report;
The Charter Trustees note the other arrangements being made
to further improve financial processes and procedures.

Voting: Unanimous.
57.

Risk Register
The Deputy Head of Democratic Services reported that an initial draft of the
risk register was submitted to the Charter Trustees in August 2020 as part
of the outcome of the internal audit report. The Charter Trustees had
agreed to establish a small group to look at the risks facing the Charter
9

–6–

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES FOR BOURNEMOUTH
25 January 2021
Trustees. The Deputy Head of Democratic Services reported that this work
had been undertaken and comments from the Charter Trustees included in
the updated document before the Charter Trustees. The Deputy Head of
Democratic Services highlighted that the risk register was an evolving
document which needed to be kept under regular review and if there were
future risks or changes the Charter Trustees would be updated.
Councillor Kelsey, Chairman thanked Officers for their support on the
development of the register. He reported onto two possible risks which
may reach a risk level of 9 but explained that provided all other elements
were undertaken correctly they would not occur.
RESOLVED that the risk register as submitted to the Charter Trustees
be agreed and the register be reviewed on a regular basis as
appropriate.
Voting: Agreed
58.

Request from previous Mayor of Bournemouth
The Deputy Head of Democratic Services reported on a request received
from a previous Mayor of Bournemouth relating to two chess cups. Charter
Trustees were advised that these cups were used for a chess competition
supported by a previous Mayor of Bournemouth in 2008/09. At that time two
chess cups were purchased by the late Sir George Meyrick Snr for the
competition which was operated in Bournemouth at the time and the
winners of the competition were presented with the cups by the late Sir
George Meyrick Snr and the Mayor of Bournemouth.
The Deputy Head of Democratic Services reported that prior to the transfer
of assets to the Charter Trustees on 1 April 2019 a valuation was
undertaken and at that time these cups were not included in the valuation.
In the latter part of 2020, the cups were returned to the Charter Trustees
and at that stage they were added to the asset list. The request had come
before the Charter Trustees to determine if the cups fit the criteria as an
historic asset and what approach Charter Trustees wish to take to the
request from the Bournemouth and District Chess League for the cups to
be returned to them. The Deputy Head of Democratic Service reported that
the approach needs to be consistent with the provisions of the financial
regulations which have now been agreed and subject to the appropriate
checks with regard to the legal position whilst noting the limited knowledge
on ownership of the cups.
Charter Trustees in considering the request made a number of comments
including:
 Would the chess league continue to run the competition if the cups
were returned to them? Officers reported that it was their
understanding that the Chess league wish to continue with the
competition but that this would include schools that were outside of
Bournemouth. It was suggested that cups could be loaned out to
the Chess League and that they should be retained and protected by
the Charter Trustees.
 What was the current valuation of the assets? Officers reported that
there was not a current valuation of the cups.
10

–7–

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES FOR BOURNEMOUTH
25 January 2021
 That future Mayors should be able to award the cups.
 That the competition should retain a local flavour and maybe there
was an opportunity to look at the chess competition and re-examine
the use of the cups.
 Make contact with representatives from the Chess league and
discuss the boundaries of the competition.
 Incorporate within the cultural compact as appropriate
The Honorary Clerk suggested that Officers take this issue back for further
discussions with the relevant stakeholders and bring a proposal back to the
Charter Trustees taking account of the comments made.
RESOLVED that Officers take this issue back for further discussions
with the relevant stakeholders and bring a proposal back to the
Charter Trustees taking account of the comments made.
Voting: Agreed

The meeting ended at 6.58 pm
MAYOR

11

This page is intentionally left blank

12

–1–

BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL
THE CHARTER TRUSTEES FOR BOURNEMOUTH
Minutes of the Meeting held on 28 May 2021 at 11.15 am
Present:Cllr D Kelsey – Mayor
Cllr S Phillips – Deputy Mayor
Present:

59.

Cllr D Borthwick, Cllr M Anderson, Cllr S Bartlett, Cllr J Beesley,
Cllr P Broadhead, Cllr D Brown, Cllr S Bull, Cllr M Davies,
Cllr N Decent, Cllr B Dove, Cllr B Dunlop, Cllr J Edwards,
Cllr G Farquhar, Cllr L Fear, Cllr A Filer, Cllr M Greene,
Cllr N Greene, Cllr M Haines, Cllr N Hedges, Cllr C Johnson,
Cllr J Kelly, Cllr R Lawton, Cllr L Lewis, Cllr D Mellor and
Cllr L Williams
Apologies
Apologies were received from Councillors H Allen, S Anderson, R Burton, E
Coope, A Jones. R Maidment, K Rampton, C Rigby and T Trent.
Note - a number of Charter Trustees were in attendance in person. In
addition, those Charter Trustees who had joined online via microsoft teams
whilst not able to vote would be recorded as in attendance.

60.

Declarations of Interests
The Honorary Clerk reported that no declarations of interest had been
received for this meeting.

61.

Election of Charter Mayor
RESOLVED that Councillor David Kelsey be elected Charter Mayor for
the ensuing Municipal Year 2021/22.
The Mayor made and signed the Declaration of Acceptance of Office and
took the Chair.
Voting: Unanimous.

62.

Election of Deputy Charter Mayor
RESOLVED that Councillor Susan Phillips be elected Charter Deputy
Mayor for the ensuing Municipal Year 2021/22.
The Deputy Mayor made and signed the Declaration of Acceptance of
Office.
The Deputy Mayor paid tribute to her Escort Mrs Rae Stollard MBE and
Chaplain for their support over the past two years
Voting: Unanimous.
13

–2–

THE CHARTER TRUSTEES FOR BOURNEMOUTH
28 May 2021

63.

Appointment of one representative and substitute to the Association of
Charter Trustees
RESOLVED that Councillor David Kelsey be appointed as a
representative to the Association of Charter Trustees with Councillor
Lawrence Williams as his substitute for the ensuing Municipal Year
2021/22.
Voting: Unanimous

64.

Appointment of Budget Signatories
RESOLVED that Councillors Robert Lawton and Lawrence Williams be
appointed as budget signatories for the ensuing Municipal Year
2021/22.
Voting: Unanimous

65.

Calendar of Meetings for 2021/22
RESOLVED that the following calendar of meetings for the Charter
Trustees be agreed:
24 June 2021 at 6 pm
25 October 2021 at 6 pm
24 January 2022 at 6 pm
27 May 2022 at 11.15 am
Voting: Unanimous

66.

Any other business deemed necessary by the Clerk to the Charter Trustees
There were no items of any other business.

The meeting ended at 11.54 am
MAYOR

14

Agenda Item 5

BOURNEMOUTH CHARTER
TRUSTEES
2020/21
…………………………………………………………………

Internal Audit
Author:
Version:
Date:
Distribution:

Jon Cockeram, Auditor
Ruth Hodges, Audit Manager
Final
May 2021
Richard Jones, Head of Democratic Services
Karen Tompkins, Deputy Head of Democratic Services
Dan Povey, Assistant Chief Finance Officer
Graham Farrant, Honorary Clerk to the Charter Trustees
Bournemouth Charter Trustees
Poole Charter Trustees
Simon Milne, Audit Manager (Deputy CIA)
Nigel Stannard, Head of Audit & Management Assurance

This report is private and confidential and has been prepared solely for internal use by or on behalf of BCP Council, and must not be disclosed
to any third party without the written approval of the Head of Audit & Management Assurance. The Council, its employees, agents and
advisors accept no responsibility, liability or duty of care to any third party for any matters, observations or conclusions which are stated or
implied in this report.

15

A. Executive Summary
The control framework is the system of risk management, internal control and governance put in place by management to ensure that objectives are achieved,
waste and inefficiency is minimised and to prevent and detect fraud and corruption.
The objectives of the audit were to provide assurance that the control framework is appropriate and that the controls and processes are operating effectively in
the Bournemouth & Poole Charter Trustees as outlined in the Annual Governance & Accountability Return (AGAR) 2020/21 for the internal control objectives
detailed on the following page.
For the avoidance of doubt, reference in this paper to Charter Trustee is to be interpreted as reference to the Charter Trustee body.
Where weaknesses in the control framework are identified, recommendations have been made for improvement and are detailed in Section B of this report.
It should be noted that whilst Bournemouth and Poole Charter Trustees are separate entities from each other as well as separate from BCP Council, the
issues identified apply to both Trustees and so one single report has been written.
Following the 2019/20 Internal Report, a great deal of work has been undertaken to implement recommendations. Due to timing issues, some results have not
been in place for all or part of the 2020/21 financial year, which is reflected in the internal control opinion and the AGAR. The AGAR requires an opinion to be
given on the controls in place during the financial year, not specifically as at the time of the audit.

16

We undertake our work on a risk and sample basis in line with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and as such we do not test all internal controls nor
identify all areas of control weakness, fraud or irregularity, however, any issues identified during the course of our work are reported to management.
Audit Opinions:
Substantial Assurance

Controls were in place for the full financial year and were operating consistently and effectively. There is a sound control framework which is
designed to achieve the service objectives, with key controls being consistently applied.

Reasonable Assurance

Controls were in place for the full financial year and were generally operating effectively. Whilst there is basically a sound control
framework, there are some weaknesses which may put service objectives at risk.

Partial Assurance

Controls were only operating effectively for part of the financial year. There are weaknesses in the control framework which are putting
service objectives at risk.

Minimal Assurance

Controls were not operating during the financial year. The control framework is generally poor as such service objectives are at significant
risk.

This report is private and confidential and has been prepared solely for internal use by or on behalf of BCP Council, and must not be disclosed to any third party without the written approval of the Head of Audit & Management Assurance.
The Council, its employees, agents and advisors accept no responsibility, liability or duty of care to any third party for any matters, observations or conclusions which are stated or implied in this report.

AGAR Internal Control Objective

17

Appropriate accounting records have been properly kept throughout the financial year
The Trustee complied with its financial regulations, payments were supported by invoices, all
expenditure was approved and VAT was appropriately accounted for
The Trustee assessed the significant risks to achieving its objectives and reviewed the
adequacy of arrangements to manage these
The precept or rates requirement resulted from an adequate budgetary process; progress
against the budget was regularly monitored; and reserves were appropriate
Expected income was fully received, based on correct prices, properly recorded and promptly
banked; and VAT was appropriately accounted for
Petty cash payments were properly supported by receipts, all petty cash expenditure was
approved and VAT appropriately accounted for
Salaries to employees and allowances to members were paid in accordance with this
authority’s approvals, and PAYE and NI requirements were properly applied
Asset and investments registers were complete and accurate and properly maintained
Periodic and year-end bank account reconciliations were properly carried out
Accounting statements prepared during the year were prepared on the correct accounting basis
(receipts and payments or income and expenditure), agreed to the cash book, supported by an
adequate audit trail from underlying records and where appropriate debtors and creditors were
properly recorded
If the authority certified itself as exempt from a limited assurance review in 2019/20, it met the
exemption criteria and correctly declared itself exempt
The authority has demonstrated that during summer 2019 it correctly provided for the exercise
of public rights as required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations
Trustee funds (including charitable) – The council met its responsibilities as a trustee

2020/21
Internal Audit Opinion on
the operation of the
control framework
throughout the financial
year

2020/21
AGAR
opinion

Substantial

Yes

Reasonable

Yes

Partial

No

None

Substantial

Yes

None

Substantial

Yes

None

Not applicable

N/A

N/A

Substantial

Yes

None

Reasonable
Substantial

Yes
Yes

None
None

Not applicable

N/A

N/A

Not applicable

N/A

N/A

Substantial

Yes

None

Not applicable

N/A

N/A

2020/21
recommendations made

None
1 Medium
2 Low

Internal Control Objectives outside the AGAR requirements
Other issues – Consideration of Service Level Agreement
Total recommendations

1 Low
4

Page | 3

Summary of Findings:
High Priority
None identified
Medium Priority
Expenditure: Evidence was not provided for all credit card transactions
Low Priority
Expenditure: Not all expenditure relates to the current financial year and accruals have not been in place
Budget signatories: Roles and responsibilities are not included in the Charter Trustees’ Standing Orders
Other Issues: No service level agreement between BCP Council and the Charter Trustees has been put in place.

Recommendation Priority Ratings:

18

High Priority

High Priority recommendations have actual / potential critical implications for the achievement of the Charter Trustee’s objectives and/or a major effect on
delivery.
Agreed actions should be urgently implemented by the Charter Trustee and the associated risk(s) added to the Charter Trustee Risk Register.
Recommendations will be followed-up by Internal Audit as part of the next audit review.

Medium
Priority

Medium Priority recommendations have actual / potential significant implications for the achievement of the Charter Trustee’s objectives and/or a significant
effect on delivery.
Agreed actions should be implemented by the Charter Trustee and formal consideration should be given to adding the associated risk(s) to the Charter Trustee
Risk Register.
Recommendations will be followed-up by Internal Audit as part of the next audit review.

Low Priority

Low Priority recommendations have actual / potential minor implications for achievement of the Charter Trustee’s objectives and/or a minor effect on delivery.
Recommendations will be followed-up by Internal Audit as part of the next audit review.

This report is private and confidential and has been prepared solely for internal use by or on behalf of BCP Council, and must not be disclosed to any third party without the written approval of the Head of Audit & Management
Assurance. The Council, its employees, agents and advisors accept no responsibility, liability or duty of care to any third party for any matters, observations or conclusions which are stated or implied in this report.

B. Findings & Recommendations
Rec
No.

Finding

Recommendation

Priority

Status / Management
Response

Responsible
Officer

Target Date

Substantial

1. Appropriate accounting records have been properly kept throughout the financial year

The Charter Trustees use BCP Council’s financial management system, Oracle Fusion, to record transactions. Each Trustee has an individual cost centre to ensure that
the transactions of the Trustee are clearly identifiable and separate from those of the Council.
2. The Trustee complied with its financial regulations, payments were supported by invoices, all expenditure was approved
and VAT was appropriately accounted for
R1

Credit Card

19

Issue: The corporate credit card returns did not
always contain appropriate evidence, which is a
requirement of the Charter Trustee Financial
Regulations. As a result of this VAT could not be
reclaimed on these transactions.

It is recommended that all
credit card transactional
evidence is provided with
the returns to support VAT
to be reclaimed

Reasonable

Medium

All credit card
transaction must
include appropriate
evidence.

Deputy Head of
Democratic
Services

Immediate
effect

Low

This issue has been
raised and action
taken to ensure
compliance with the
recommendation.

Deputy Head of
Democratic
Services

Effective
for all
financial
years

Risk: The Charter Trustees do not have an effective
system of control over credit card expenditure
R2

Accruals
Issue: The list of 2020/21 financial transactions for
each Trust includes ones that relate to the 2019/20
financial year which were not accrued for. Whilst
these are not material (£263 in total for
Bournemouth Charter Trustees, £838 in total for
Poole Charter Trustees), they do not relate to the
current financial year. This is not in line with good
accounting practice.

It is recommended that
financial transactions are
reviewed before and after
the financial year end to
ensure that accruals are
correctly raised

Risk: The Charter Trustee financial statements are
incorrect and do not comply with good accounting
practice

Page | 5

Rec
No.

Finding

Recommendation

R3

Standing Orders

It is recommended that
Budget Signatory
responsibilities are
included in the Charter
Trustee Standing Orders

Issue: Budget Signatory responsibilities were
approved in the October 2020 meetings; however,
they have not been included in the Charter Trustee
standing orders.
Risk: New budget signatories may not be aware of
their responsibilities

Priority
Low

Status / Management
Response
The Responsibilities
of the Budget
Signatories have
been agreed and will
be included in the
Charter Trustees as
recommended

Responsible
Officer

Target Date

Deputy Head of
Democratic
Services

3. The Trustee assessed the significant risks to achieving its objectives and reviewed the adequacy of arrangements to
manage these

May 2021

Partial

The 2019/20 Internal Audit report recommended that the Charter Trustees should have their own risk registers. Work has progressed on this during 2020/21 and the
Charter Trustees agreed risk registers at the meetings in January 2021, however the registers have not been in place throughout 2020/21.

20

4. The precept or rates requirement resulted from an adequate budgetary process; progress against the budget was
regularly monitored; and reserves were appropriate

Substantial

The 2019/20 Internal Audit report recommended that the budget setting process for 2021/22 was reviewed and that Budget Signatories were involved in setting the
budget. These have both been implemented during 2021/22, and as such Internal Audit are satisfied that the control objective has been met.
5. Expected income was fully received, based on correct prices, properly recorded and promptly banked; and VAT was
appropriately accounted for

Substantial

The main source of income for the Trustees is the annual precept. No other sources of income have been identified beyond Trustees repaying the Trustee for a luncheon at
the Mayor Making Ceremonies. This is appropriate and as expected – the Trustees are not collecting income for charities, so there should be no other sources of income.
6. Petty cash payments were properly supported by receipts, all petty cash expenditure was approved, and VAT
appropriately accounted for

Not applicable

The Trustees themselves do not have petty cash floats nor do any of the staff appointed by the Council to work on the trustees. The Council staff have access to payment
cards which are included in the expenditure section above.
7. Salaries to employees and allowances to members were paid in accordance with this authority’s approvals, and PAYE
and NI requirements were properly applied

Substantial

Trustees do not receive allowances for their role on the Charter Trusts. BCP Council’s payroll system is subject to periodic review by Internal Audit.

Page | 6

Rec
No.

Finding

Recommendation

Priority

Status / Management
Response

Responsible
Officer

Target Date

Issues for BCP Council: The 2019/20 Internal Audit report recommended that costs for all BCP Council employee time relating to the Trustees are recharged to the
Trustees. This will not take place for 2020/21, however the reviewed budget setting process has taken this into account and costs will be fully recharged in 2021/22.
8. Asset and investments registers were complete and accurate and properly maintained

Reasonable

The 2019/20 Internal Audit report recommended that regular asset verification exercises are carried out, and this has been done during 2020/21.
A further recommendation was raised relating to the reserves of the Trust being invested by the Council and any income from the interest. This has not been implemented
during 2020/21, however this investment income has been included in the 2021/22 budget.
9. Periodic and year-end bank account reconciliations were properly carried out

Substantial

The Trusts do not have individual bank accounts – instead, their funds form part of BCP Council’s bank balance. Internal Audit has carried out work separately on this to
confirm that bank reconciliations are carried out periodically throughout the year with no issues identified.

21

10. Accounting statements prepared during the year were prepared on the correct accounting basis (receipts and payments
or income and expenditure), agreed to the cash book, supported by an adequate audit trail from underlying records and
where appropriate debtors and creditors were properly recorded

Not applicable

Formal financial statements are only produced at year end, and these are considered by the external auditor as part of their annual audit process. In-year budget
monitoring has been considered in section 4 of this report, and as such Internal Audit considers that this part of the Annual Internal Audit Report is not applicable to the
Trustees.
11. If the authority certified itself as exempt from a limited assurance review in 2019/20, it met the exemption criteria and
correctly declared itself exempt

Not applicable

The Trustees did not certify themselves as exempt from a limited assurance review in 2019/20. Internal Audit considers this part of the Annual Internal Audit Report not to
be applicable to the Trustees at this point in time.
12. The authority has demonstrated that during summer 2020 it correctly provided for the exercise of public rights as
required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations

Substantial

The Trustees have notices on the relevant sections of the BCP Council website advertising the public’s right to inspect the accounts for the 2019/20 accounting
statements. Due to the current pandemic, these have been modified in accordance with the relevant guidance. As such, Internal Audit considers that there are no issues
at this point in time within this control objective which need to be brought to the attention of the Trustees.

Page | 7

Rec
No.

Finding

Recommendation

Priority

Status / Management
Response

13. Trustee funds (including charitable) – The council met its responsibilities as a trustee

Responsible
Officer

Target Date

Not applicable

BCP Council is not one of the Charter trustees but supports the Trusts in several ways.
14. Other Issues - Consideration of Service Level Agreement
R4

Consideration of a Service Level Agreement
Issue: The Service Level Agreement which was
agreed in principle at the last audit has not yet been
fully implemented.

22

As part of the agreement for the 2021/22 budget
there has been explanation for how recharges have
been arrived at. For accountancy there is an implied
level of service built into the recharges, however
there is no such implicit breakdown for the salary
costs.

It is recommended that
Service Level Agreements
or equivalents are put in
place between the Council
and the Trustees to
formally set out what is
being provided by the
Council.

Low

The Service Level
Agreements between
the Council and the
Trustees are currently
being drafted. This
will take account of the
budget and recharges
set for 2021/22.

Deputy Head
of Democratic
Services

September
2021

Risk: The Trustees may be paying for services they
do not require or do not have the level of service
needed to support the efficient operation of the
Charter Trustees
BCP Council Risk: The Council is subsidising the
Charter Trustees

Page | 8

Agenda Item 6
THE CHARTER TRUSTEES FOR
BOURNEMOUTH

Report subject

Budget Outturn Report 2020/21

Meeting date

24 June 2021

Status

Public Report

Executive summary

Due to effects of the pandemic, the Charter Trustees of
Bournemouth underspent against their approved budgets by
£27,671 for 2020/21. This underspend plus the budgeted
contribution to reserves of £4,400 has been added to the opening
reserves position of £7,994 to give total reserves carried forward of
£40,065 as at 31 March 2021.

Recommendations

It is RECOMMENDED that:
The Charter Trustees note the budget outturn position for
2020/21.

Reason for
recommendations

To inform the Charter Trustees of the budget outturn position for
the 2020/21 financial year.

Report Authors

Dan Povey, Responsible Financial Officer

Wards

Council-wide

Classification

For Recommendation

23

Title:

Background
1.

In accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the Charter Trustees
are required to approve the Annual Governance and Accountability Return (AGAR)
2020/21 by 30 June 2021. The AGAR contains a summarised accounting statement
that complies with statutory requirements. This report provides the Charter Trustees
with a detailed analysis of the budget outturn position in order to facilitate the
approval of the AGAR that is on the agenda elsewhere today.

Budget outturn position 2020/21
2.

The Charter Trustees of Bournemouth approved the 2020/21 budget at their meeting
of 30 January 2020. Total expenditure of £137,250 was approved which included a
£4,400 contribution to reserves.

3.

Budget monitoring reports during the 2020/21 financial year informed the Charter
Trustees that the budget would be significantly underspent across civic budget
headings due to the effect of covid-19 and the associated restrictions on activity
during the year. The position reported in January 2021 was a forecast underspend
of £32,269, resulting in a contribution to reserves of £36,669.

4.

The final outturn position for the financial year is an underspend of £27,671,
resulting in a total contribution to reserves of £32,071.

5.

Appendix A provides the detail of the expenditure incurred during 2020/21 against
the detailed budget headings. The total spend, excluding the contribution to
reserves, of £105,179 shown in this detailed expenditure analysis reconciles to the
statutory summary accounting statements that the Charter Trustees are asked to
approve elsewhere on the agenda today. The summary accounting statements form
part of the Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2020/21.

6.

In the main the Charter Trustees have only incurred expenditure relating to staff and
premises recharges plus support service recharges from BCP Council. The final
outturn expenditure is £4,500 higher than forecast in January, mainly due to the
purchase of the past mayor’s badge under the civic regalia budget heading.

Reserves
7.

As a result of the in-year underspend, the Charter Trustees will carry forward
reserves of £40,065 into the 2021/22 financial year. The reserves position is
summarised in Figure 1 below.
Figure 1: Reserves Position 31 March 2021
2020/21

2021/22

Actual £

Budget
£

Opening Balance 1 April

7,994

40,065

Movement In Year

32,071

(7,994)

Closing Balance 31 March

40,065

32,071

Percentage of 2021/22 Precept

27%

22%

24

8.

The Charter Trustees reserve level will therefore represent 22% of the 2021/22
precept (£147,956) at 31 March 2022, once the budgeted £7,994 contribution to the
revenue budget is accounted for in 2021/22.

9.

The 2021/22 budget report recommended reserve levels of 20% of the precept,
which would equate to £30,000. This level is thought prudent to cover unforeseen
expenditure because of the nature of the Charter Trustee budget where 76% of
expenditure is on an agreed recharge basis with BCP Council and so not subject to
volatility (for example salary costs and premises costs).

10. Therefore there is the opportunity for the Charter Trustees to determine whether
they wish to utilise any of the reserves above the prudent level to support one off
initiatives or expenditure.

Summary of financial implications
11. As detailed in the report.
Summary of legal implications
12. None.
Summary of human resources implications
13. None.
Summary of sustainability impact
14. None.
Summary of public health implications
15. None.
Summary of equality implications
16. None.
Summary of risk assessment
17. The report sets out the level of reserves at the disposal of the Charter Trustees and
defines the minimum prudent balance to cover unforeseen expenditure.
Background papers
Charter Trustee Budget 2020/21 – Published works, Charter Trustees of Bournemouth
meeting 30 January 2020.
Appendices
Appendix A – Budget outturn position 2020/21

25

This page is intentionally left blank

26

Appendix A

Bournemouth Charter Trustee - Budget Outturn 2020/21
2020/21

2020/21

Budget

2020/21

Jan Forecast

12,000
4,500
100
200
2,000
500
300

3,500
10,000
2,000
200
1,500
500
500

500
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Description of expenditure and income
Expenditure
Civic Budget
Hospitality
Civic Regalia
Travel and Subsistence
Training and Conferences
Out of Pocket Expenses
Photography
Flowers

Outturn

156
3,714
0
0
496
0
0

Civic Events
Mayor Making
Remembrance
Civic Service
Civic Awards
War Commemoration
Special Anniversarial Events
Other Events Continguency

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

19,350

Premises
21,381 Room & Premises

23,220

66,700

Staffing Recharges
72,050 Salaries, NI and Pensions

72,050

400
50
500
250

0
100
0
250

500
600
2,000
0
500
1,000
500
200

0
660
400
1,250
1,100
2,739
0
0

2,000
250
250
132,850

Administration and Running Costs
Postages
Printing & Photocopying
Stationery
Subscriptions - Organisations
Supplies and Services
Clothing & Uniforms
Insurance
External Audit
Internal Audit
Accountancy
ICT Provision
Telephony
Laundry

600
400
1,250
600
1,834
0
0

Transport
100 Fuel
50 Vehicle Hire - General Use
0 Vehicle Maintenance & Repairs - Workshop
100,581 Total Expenditure

(137,250)
0
0
36,669

(132,850)

(100,581) Total Income & Reserves

0
0
8
105,179

Income & Reserves
Council Tax Precept
Investment Income
Use of Reserves
Contribution to Reserves

(137,250)
0
0
4,400

0

43
507
0
300

(137,250)

32,071
(105,179)

(0) Net Position

0

Bournemouth Charter Trustee - Reserves
(7,994)

(7,994) Opening Balance

(7,994)

(4,400)

(36,669) In year movement

(32,071)

(12,394)

(44,663) Closing Balance

(40,065)

27

This page is intentionally left blank

28

Agenda Item 7
Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2020/21 Part 3
To be completed by Local Councils, Internal Drainage Boards and other Smaller Authorities*:
• where the higher of gross income or gross expenditure exceeded £25,000 but did not exceed
£6.5 million; or
• where the higher of gross income or gross expenditure was £25,000
or less but that:
• are unable to certify themselves as exempt (fee payable); or
• have requested a limited assurance review (fee payable)

Guidance notes on completing Part 3 of the Annual Governance and
Accountability Return 2020/21
1. Every smaller authority in England that either received gross income or incurred gross expenditure
exceeding £25,000 must complete Part 3 of the Annual Governance and Accountability Return at
the end of each financial year in accordance with Proper Practices.
2. The Annual Governance and Accountability Return is made up of three parts, pages 3 to 6:
• The Annual Internal Audit Report must be completed by the authority’s internal auditor.
• Sections 1 and 2 must be completed and approved by the authority.
• Section 3 is completed by the external auditor and will be returned to the authority.
3. The authority must approve Section 1, Annual Governance Statement, before approving Section 2,
Accounting Statements, and both must be approved and published on the authority website/webpage
before 1 July 2021.
4. An authority with either gross income or gross expenditure exceeding £25,000 or an authority with
neither income nor expenditure exceeding £25,000, but which is unable to certify itself as exempt, or
is requesting a limited assurance review, must return to the external auditor by email or post (not both)
no later than 30 June 2021. Reminder letters will incur a charge of £40 +VAT:
• the Annual Governance and Accountability Return Sections 1 and 2, together with
• a bank reconciliation as at 31 March 2021
• an explanation of any significant year on year variances in the accounting statements
• notification of the commencement date of the period for the exercise of public rights
• Annual Internal Audit Report 2020/21
Unless requested, do not send any additional documents to your external auditor. Your external auditor will
ask for any additional documents needed.
Once the external auditor has completed the limited assurance review and is able to give an opinion, the
Annual Governance and Accountability Section1, Section 2 and Section 3 – External Auditor Report
and Certificate will be returned to the authority by email or post.

Publication Requirements
Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, authorities must publish the following information on
the authority website/webpage:
Before 1 July 2021 authorities must publish:
• Notice of the period for the exercise of public rights and a declaration that the accounting statements
are as yet unaudited;
• Section 1 - Annual Governance Statement 2020/21, approved and signed, page 4
• Section 2 - Accounting Statements 2020/21, approved and signed, page 5
Not later than 30 September 2021 authorities must publish:
• Notice of conclusion of audit
• Section 3 - External Auditor Report and Certificate
• Sections 1 and 2 of AGAR including any amendments as a result of the limited assurance review.
It is recommended as best practice, to avoid any potential confusion by local electors and interested
parties, that you also publish the Annual Internal Audit Report, page 3.
The Annual Governance and Accountability Return constitutes the annual return referred to in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.
Throughout, the words ‘external auditor’ have the same meaning as the words ‘local auditor’ in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.
*for a complete list of bodies that may be smaller authorities refer to schedule 2 to the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2020/21 Part
293
Local Councils, Internal Drainage Boards and other Smaller Authorities*

Page 1 of 6

Guidance notes on completing Part 3 of the Annual Governance and
Accountability Return (AGAR) 2020/21
• The authority must comply with Proper Practices in completing Sections 1 and 2 of this AGAR. Proper
Practices are found in the Practitioners’ Guide* which is updated from time to time and contains everything
needed to prepare successfully for the financial year-end and the subsequent work by the external auditor.
• Make sure that the AGAR is complete (no highlighted boxes left empty), and is properly signed and dated. If the
AGAR contains unapproved or unexplained amendments, it may be returned and additional costs will be incurred.
• The authority should receive and note the Annual Internal Audit Report before approving the Annual
Governance Statement and the accounts.
• Use the checklist provided below to review the AGAR for completeness before returning it to the external
auditor by email or post (not both) no later than 30 June 2021.
• The Annual Governance Statement (Section 1) must be approved on the same day or before the Accounting
Statements (Section 2) and evidenced by the agenda or minute references.
• The Responsible Financial Officer (RFO) must certify the accounts (Section 2) before they are presented to
the authority for approval. The authority must in this order; consider, approve and sign the accounts.
• The RFO is required to commence the public rights period as soon as practical after the date of the AGAR approval.
• Do not send the external auditor any information not specifically requested. However, you must inform your
external auditor about any change of Clerk, Responsible Financial Officer or Chairman, and provide
relevant authority owned generic email addresses and telephone numbers.
• Make sure that the copy of the bank reconciliation to be sent to your external auditor with the AGAR covers
all the bank accounts. If the authority holds any short-term investments, note their value on the bank
reconciliation. The external auditor must be able to agree the bank reconciliation to Box 8 on the accounting
statements (Section 2, page 5). An explanation must be provided of any difference between Box 7 and
Box 8. More help on bank reconciliation is available in the Practitioners’ Guide*.
• Explain fully significant variances in the accounting statements on page 5. Do not just send a copy of the detailed
accounting records instead of this explanation. The external auditor wants to know that you understand the
reasons for all variances. Include complete numerical and narrative analysis to support the full variance.
• If the external auditor has to review unsolicited information, or receives an incomplete bank reconciliation, or
variances are not fully explained, additional costs may be incurred.
• Make sure that the accounting statements add up and that the balance carried forward from the previous year
(Box 7 of 2020) equals the balance brought forward in the current year (Box 1 of 2021).
• The Responsible Financial Officer (RFO), on behalf of the authority, must set the commencement date for the
exercise of public rights of 30 consecutive working days which must include the first ten working days of July.
• The authority must publish on the authority website/webpage the information required by Regulation 15 (2),
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, including the period for the exercise of public rights and the name and
address of the external auditor before 1 July 2021.
Completion checklist – ‘No’ answers mean you may not have met requirements
All sections

Yes

Have all highlighted boxes have been completed?

✔

Has all additional information requested, including the dates set for the period
for the exercise of public rights, been provided for the external auditor?

✔

Internal Audit Report Have all highlighted boxes been completed by the internal auditor and explanations provided?

✔

Section 1

For any statement to which the response is ‘no’, has an explanation been published?

✔

Section 2

Has the authority’s approval of the accounting statements been confirmed by
the signature of the Chairman of the approval meeting?

✔

Has an explanation of significant variations from last year to this year been published?

✔

Has the bank reconciliation as at 31 March 2021 been reconciled to Box 8?

✔

Has an explanation of any difference between Box 7 and Box 8 been provided?

✔

Trust funds – have all disclosures been made if the authority as a body corporate is a
sole managing trustee? NB: do not send trust accounting statements unless requested.

✔

Sections 1 and 2

No

*Governance and Accountability for Smaller Authorities in England – a Practitioners’ Guide to Proper Practices,
can be downloaded from www.nalc.gov.uk or from www.ada.org.uk

Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2020/21 Part
303
Local Councils, Internal Drainage Boards and other Smaller Authorities*

Page 2 of 6

Annual Internal Audit Report 2020/21
ENTER
NAME OF
Charter
Trustees
forAUTHORITY
Bournemouth
ENTER PUBLICLY AVAILABLE WEBSITE/WEBPAGE ADDRESS
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=304
During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, this authority’s internal auditor acting independently and on the basis
of an assessment of risk, carried out a selective assessment of compliance with the relevant procedures and controls
in operation and obtained appropriate evidence from the authority.
The internal audit for 2020/21 has been carried out in accordance with this authority’s needs and planned coverage.
On the basis of the findings in the areas examined, the internal audit conclusions are summarised in this table. Set
out below are the objectives of internal control and alongside are the internal audit conclusions on whether, in all
significant respects, the control objectives were being achieved throughout the financial year to a standard adequate
to meet the needs of this authority.

Internal control objective

Yes

A. Appropriate accounting records have been properly kept throughout the financial year.

✔

B. This authority complied with its financial regulations, payments were supported by invoices, all
expenditure was approved and VAT was appropriately accounted for.

✔

C. This authority assessed the significant risks to achieving its objectives and reviewed the adequacy
of arrangements to manage these.

No*

Not
covered**

✔

D. The precept or rates requirement resulted from an adequate budgetary process; progress against
the budget was regularly monitored; and reserves were appropriate.

✔

E. Expected income was fully received, based on correct prices, properly recorded and promptly
banked; and VAT was appropriately accounted for.

✔

F. Petty cash payments were properly supported by receipts, all petty cash expenditure was approved
and VAT appropriately accounted for.
G. Salaries to employees and allowances to members were paid in accordance with this authority’s
approvals, and PAYE and NI requirements were properly applied.
H. Asset and investments registers were complete and accurate and properly maintained.
I. Periodic bank account reconciliations were properly carried out during the year.

✔

✔
✔
✔

J. Accounting statements prepared during the year were prepared on the correct accounting basis (receipts
and payments or income and expenditure), agreed to the cash book, supported by an adequate audit
trail from underlying records and where appropriate debtors and creditors were properly recorded.

✔

K. If the authority certified itself as exempt from a limited assurance review in 2019/20, it met the
exemption criteria and correctly declared itself exempt. (If the authority had a limited assurance
review of its 2019/20 AGAR tick “not covered”)

✔

L. If the authority has an annual turnover not exceeding £25,000, it publishes information on a website/
webpage up to date at the time of the internal audit in accordance with the Transparency code for
smaller authorities.

✔

M. The authority, during the previous year (2019-20) correctly provided for the period for the exercise of
public rights as required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations (evidenced by the notice published
on the website and/or authority approved minutes confirming the dates set).

✔

N. The authority has complied with the publication requirements for 2019/20 AGAR
(see AGAR Page 1 Guidance Notes).

✔
Yes

O. (For local councils only)
Trust funds (including charitable) – The council met its responsibilities as a trustee.

No

Not applicable

✔

For any other risk areas identified by this authority adequate controls existed (list any other risk areas on separate sheets if needed).
Date(s) internal audit undertaken

DD/MM/YYYY
01/02/2021

Name of person who carried out the internal audit

DD/MM/YYYY
19/03/2021

Signature of person who
carried out the internal audit

DD/MM/YYYY

ENTER
NAME OF INTERNAL AUDITOR
Jon
Cockeram

SIGNATURE REQUIRED

Date

DD/MM/YYYY
02/06/2021

*If the response is ‘no’ please state the implications and action being taken to address any weakness in control identified
(add separate sheets if needed).
**Note: If the response is ‘not covered’ please state when the most recent internal audit work was done in this area and when it is
next planned; or, if coverage is not required, the annual internal audit report must explain why not (add separate sheets if needed).

Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2020/21 Part
313
Local Councils, Internal Drainage Boards and other Smaller Authorities

Page 3 of 6

Section 1 – Annual Governance Statement 2020/21
We acknowledge as the members of:

Charter
Trustees
forAUTHORITY
Bournemouth
ENTER
NAME OF
our responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control, including arrangements for
the preparation of the Accounting Statements. We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, with
respect to the Accounting Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021, that:
Agreed
Yes
1. We have put in place arrangements for effective financial
management during the year, and for the preparation of
the accounting statements.

✔

2. We maintained an adequate system of internal control
including measures designed to prevent and detect fraud
and corruption and reviewed its effectiveness.

✔

3. We took all reasonable steps to assure ourselves
that there are no matters of actual or potential
non-compliance with laws, regulations and Proper
Practices that could have a significant financial effect
on the ability of this authority to conduct its
business or manage its finances.

✔

4. We provided proper opportunity during the year for
the exercise of electors’ rights in accordance with the
requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations.

✔

No*

‘Yes’ means that this authority:
prepared its accounting statements in accordance
with the Accounts and Audit Regulations.
made proper arrangements and accepted responsibility
for safeguarding the public money and resources in
its charge.
has only done what it has the legal power to do and has
complied with Proper Practices in doing so.

5. We carried out an assessment of the risks facing this
authority and took appropriate steps to manage those
risks, including the introduction of internal controls and/or
external insurance cover where required.

during the year gave all persons interested the opportunity to
inspect and ask questions about this authority’s accounts.

✔

considered and documented the financial and other risks it
faces and dealt with them properly.

6. We maintained throughout the year an adequate and
effective system of internal audit of the accounting
records and control systems.

✔

arranged for a competent person, independent of the financial
controls and procedures, to give an objective view on whether
internal controls meet the needs of this smaller authority.

7. We took appropriate action on all matters raised
in reports from internal and external audit.

✔

responded to matters brought to its attention by internal and
external audit.

8. We considered whether any litigation, liabilities or
commitments, events or transactions, occurring either
during or after the year-end, have a financial impact on
this authority and, where appropriate, have included them
in the accounting statements.
9. (For local councils only) Trust funds including
charitable. In our capacity as the sole managing
trustee we discharged our accountability
responsibilities for the fund(s)/assets, including
financial reporting and, if required, independent
examination or audit.

disclosed everything it should have about its business activity
during the year including events taking place after the year
end if relevant.

✔
Yes

No

N/A

has met all of its responsibilities where, as a body
corporate, it is a sole managing trustee of a local
trust or trusts.

✔

*Please provide explanations to the external auditor on a separate sheet for each ‘No’ response and describe how the
authority will address the weaknesses identified. These sheets must be published with the Annual Governance Statement.
This Annual Governance Statement was approved at a
meeting of the authority on:

Signed by the Chairman and Clerk of the meeting where
approval was given:

DD/MM/YY
and recorded as minute reference:

MINUTE REFERENCE

Chairman
Clerk

SIGNATURE REQUIRED
SIGNATURE REQUIRED

ENTER PUBLICLY AVAILABLE WEBSITE/WEBPAGE ADDRESS
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=304

Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2020/21 Part
323
Local Councils, Internal Drainage Boards and other Smaller Authorities*

Page 4 of 6

Section 2 – Accounting Statements 2020/21 for
ENTER
NAME OF
Charter
Trustees
forAUTHORITY
Bournemouth
Year ending
31 March
2020
£
1. Balances brought
forward
2. (+) Precept or Rates and
Levies
3. (+) Total other receipts

Notes and guidance

31 March
2021
£

Please round all figures to nearest £1. Do not leave any
boxes blank and report £0 or Nil balances. All figures must
agree to underlying financial records.

0

7,994

134,000

137,250

1,645

0

4. (-) Staff costs

Total balances and reserves at the beginning of the year
as recorded in the financial records. Value must agree to
Box 7 of previous year.
Total amount of precept (or for IDBs rates and levies)
received or receivable in the year. Exclude any grants
received.
Total income or receipts as recorded in the cashbook less
the precept or rates/levies received (line 2). Include any
grants received.
Total expenditure or payments made to and on behalf
of all employees. Include gross salaries and wages,
employers NI contributions, employers pension
contributions, gratuities and severance payments.

-87,698

-72,050

0

0

-39,953

-33,129

Total expenditure or payments as recorded in the cashbook less staff costs (line 4) and loan interest/capital
repayments (line 5).

7. (=) Balances carried
forward

7,994

40,065

Total balances and reserves at the end of the year. Must
equal (1+2+3) - (4+5+6).

8. Total value of cash and
short term investments

7,994

40,065

The sum of all current and deposit bank accounts, cash
holdings and short term investments held as at 31 March –
To agree with bank reconciliation.

646,065

646,065

The value of all the property the authority owns – it is made
up of all its fixed assets and long term investments as at
31 March.

0

0

The outstanding capital balance as at 31 March of all loans
from third parties (including PWLB).

5. (-) Loan interest/capital
repayments
6. (-) All other payments

9. Total fixed assets plus
long term investments
and assets
10. Total borrowings

11. (For Local Councils Only) Disclosure note
re Trust funds (including charitable)

Yes

No

✔

Total expenditure or payments of capital and interest
made during the year on the authority’s borrowings (if any).

The Council, as a body corporate, acts as sole trustee for
and is responsible for managing Trust funds or assets.
N.B. The figures in the accounting statements above do
not include any Trust transactions.

I certify that for the year ended 31 March 2021 the Accounting I confirm that these Accounting Statements were
Statements in this Annual Governance and Accountability
approved by this authority on this date:
Return have been prepared on either a receipts and payments
DD/MM/YY
or income and expenditure basis following the guidance in
Governance and Accountability for Smaller Authorities – a
Practitioners’ Guide to Proper Practices and present fairly
as recorded in minute reference:
the financial position of this authority.
MINUTE REFERENCE
Signed by Responsible Financial Officer before being
presented to the authority for approval

SIGNATURE REQUIRED
Date

Signed by Chairman of the meeting where the Accounting
Statements were approved

DD/MM/YY

Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2020/21 Part
333
Local Councils, Internal Drainage Boards and other Smaller Authorities*

SIGNATURE REQUIRED

Page 5 of 6

Section 3 – External Auditor’s Report and Certificate 2020/21
In respect of

ENTER
NAME OF
Charter
Trustees
forAUTHORITY
Bournemouth

1 Respective responsibilities of the auditor and the authority
Our responsibility as auditors to complete a limited assurance review is set out by the National Audit Office (NAO). A limited
assurance review is not a full statutory audit, it does not constitute an audit carried out in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland) and hence it does not provide the same level of assurance that such an audit would.
The UK Government has determined that a lower level of assurance than that provided by a full statutory audit is appropriate
for those local public bodies with the lowest levels of spending.
Under a limited assurance review, the auditor is responsible for reviewing Sections 1 and 2 of the Annual Governance and
Accountability Return in accordance with NAO Auditor Guidance Note 02 (AGN 02) as issued by the NAO on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General. AGN 02 is available from the NAO website –
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/guidance-and-information-for-auditors/ .
This authority is responsible for ensuring that its financial management is adequate and effective and that it has
a sound system of internal control. The authority prepares an Annual Governance and Accountability Return in
accordance with Proper Practices which:
• summarises the accounting records for the year ended 31 March 2021; and
• confirms and provides assurance on those matters that are relevant to our duties and responsibilities as external auditors.

2 External auditor’s limited assurance opinion 2020/21
(Except for the matters reported below)* on the basis of our review of Sections 1 and 2 of the Annual Governance and Accountability Return, in
our opinion the information in Sections 1 and 2 of the Annual Governance and Accountability Return is in accordance with Proper Practices and
no other matters have come to our attention giving cause for concern that relevant legislation and regulatory requirements have not been met.
(*delete as appropriate).

(continue on a separate sheet if required)
Other matters not affecting our opinion which we draw to the attention of the authority:

(continue on a separate sheet if required)

3 External auditor certificate 2020/21
We certify/do not certify* that we have completed our review of Sections 1 and 2 of the Annual Governance and
Accountability Return, and discharged our responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, for
the year ended 31 March 2021.
*We do not certify completion because:

External Auditor Name

ENTER NAME OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR
External Auditor Signature

SIGNATURE REQUIRED

Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2020/21 Part
343
Local Councils, Internal Drainage Boards and other Smaller Authorities*

Date

DD/MM/YY
Page 6 of 6

Charter Trustees for Bournemouth
Addendum to Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2020/21
Annual Internal Audit Report: Responses to Weaknesses Identified in Internal Control

Internal Control Objective /
Assurance Given
This authority assessed the
significant risks to achieving
its objectives and reviewed
the adequacy of
arrangements to manage
these.
Partial assurance given.

Finding

Implication

The 2019/20 Internal Audit
report recommended that the
Charter Trustees should
have their own risk registers.
Work has progressed on this
during 2020/21 and the
Charter Trustees agreed risk
registers at the meetings in
January 2021, however the
registers have not been in
place throughout 2020/21.

The registers have not
been in place
throughout 2020/21.

35

Action Taken
None required as the
registers are now in
place.

This page is intentionally left blank

36

